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From: Wing Young [mailto: WingY @greenknight.com]
Sent: Monday, April 17, 2017 7:49 PM
To: XiaoMing Huang

Subject: Re: Follow-up Questions re DD

Dear Xiao Ming,

Your message is duly noted.

We are confident that we will meet the next milestone within around 6 months from now, of
which we will keep you abreast of. And again, we promise that we will increase the
percentage of eco-friendly materials in MLS sports shoes to 50% or even higher based on

technical and commercial feasibility.

Cheers,

Wing Young

Vice President

Green Knight Co., Ltd.

8F, No. 1234, Sec. 4, Zhongxiao E. Rd.
Taipei 11072, Taiwan, R.O.C.

T: +886-2-2715-5987

E-mail; www.greenknight.com

From: XiaoMing Huang [mailto: Xmhuang@angelearthbaby.com]
Sent: Monday, April 17, 2017 11:50 AM
To: Wing Young

Subject: RE: Follow-up Questions re DD

Dear Wing,
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Thanks for the clarification. We take note of your trade secrets response relating to the testing

report, though we feel a bit disappointed.

We think unless the eco-friendly materials contained in the MLS sports shoes reach at least
50%, the MLS sports shoes should not be claimed as "the most green sports shoes in Taiwan".

We understand that it may take some time to develop the technology to reduce the costs of
MLS materials, so please keep us posted on the progress and the schedule regarding the
increase of the percentage of eco-friendly materials in MLS sports shoes,

Best regards,
XiaoMing Huang

APAC General Counsel

Angelearthbaby Investment, Inc.

PO Box 59487 KY1-1209, Seven Mile Beach
Grand Cayman, KY1-1209 Cayman Islands
T: +1 (345) 943-9487

E: www.angelaearthbaby.com

From: Wing Young [mailto: WingY @greenknight.com]
Sent: Friday, April 14, 2017 13:32 PM
To: XiaoMing Huang

Subject: Re: Follow-up Questions re DD

Dear Xiao Ming,

Thank you for your email.

We certainly understand your concern. As you may be aware, the MLS materials are

processed by our exclusive technology and thus are our trade secrets. Therefore, we apologize
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that we are not able to share the eco-friendly materials testing report in relation to the MLS

sports shoes with you.

However, based on our latest progress, there is at least 30% of eco-friendly materials

contained in the MLS sports shoes now.

And while the production cost of the MLS materials is still quite high at the current stage,
please be assured that we will work relentlessly to keep improving our technology in order to
contain an increased amount of eco-friendly materials in our MLS sports shoes, to the extent
commercially and technologically feasible.

Being the leader of this market, we firmly believe that the MLS sports shoes represent the

promising future of green sports products.

We hope the above clarifies your concern. Please feel free to let us know if you have any

questions.

Cheers,

Wing Young

Vice President

Green Knight Co., Ltd.

8F, No. 1234, Sec. 4, Zhongxiao E. Rd.
Taipei 11072, Taiwan, R.O.C.

T: +886-2-2715-5987

E-mail: www.greenknight.com

From: XiaoMing Huang [mailto:Xmhuang@angelearthbaby.com]
Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 6:23 PM
To: Wing Young

Subject: Follow-up Questions re DD

Dear Wing,
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We greatly appreciate the cooperation from the company side during the legal due diligence.
While we are still in the middle of our DD exercise, we would like to clarify one issue about

the marine life skeleton material (MLS) sports shoes.

We learned that Green Knight has been working on the R&D of eco-friendly materials and is
eager to introduce the eco-friendly sports products to the market. And a milestone of such
goal is that Green Knight has launched the MLS sports shoes (which were claimed as "the
most green sports shoes in Taiwan") a few months ago. As you know, we support all kinds of
green products, and so we are thrilled to see the creation of the MLS sports shoes by you.

However, one thing that alerted us is that, based on our preliminary due diligence findings, a
substantial part of the materials used for the manufacturing of MLS shoes is still virgin
plastic, and it appears that there is still approximately 80% or more virgin plastic used in the

MLS sports shoes.

In this connection, could you share with us a copy of the eco-friendly materials testing report
in relation to the MLS sports shoes so that we can verify the percentage of the eco-friendly
materials contained in the MLS sports shoes? Please note that this information is crucial to

our board's investment decision-making process.

We hope that Green Knight understands our concern, and we look forward to hearing your

thoughts on this.

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
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SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
THIS SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement”) is executed as of June 16,
2017, by and among:

(a) Green Knight Co., Ltd. (%5 L& >3 *12 ), acompany duly incorporated under the

laws of the Republic of China ("ROC" or "Taiwan") and having its registered address at
8F, No. 1234, Sec. 4, Zhongxiao E. Rd., Taipei 11072, Taiwan, R.O.C. (the "Company");

and

(b) Angelearthbaby Investment, Inc. (% % ¥4 F 2 ), a company duly incorporated

under the laws of Cayman Islands and having its registered address at PO Box 59487
KY1-1209, Seven Mile Beach, Grand Cayman, KY1-1209 Cayman Islands (the "Buyer").

The Buyer and the Company, each a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company is a company traded at the emerging market in Taiwan, and is

engaged in the manufacturing and sales of sports goods and equipment and gear;

WHEREAS, the Buyer is a leading international investment firm focusing its investment

in the environmental-friendly and sustainable businesses worldwide;

WHEREAS, the Buyer intends to subscribe and purchase 6,000,000 preferred shares to
be issued by the Company and the Company intends to issue and sell such 6,000,000

preferred shares to the Buyer on the terms and conditions hereof; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
agreements herein contained, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree

the following terms and conditions.

1. Definitions.
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2.

The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them below:

"Business Day" means any day (other than a Saturday or Sunday or statutory holidays

in Taiwan) on which banks are generally open for business in Taiwan.

"Closing" means the consummation of the transfer of the Purchasing Shares.

"Closing Date" means the date of Closing.

"FIA" shall mean the foreign investment application to be submitted by the Buyer to the
Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic Affairs for the purchase of the

Purchasing Shares from the Company as provided herein.

"Law(s)" means any constitutional provision, statute or other law, rule, regulation,
official policy or interpretation of any governmental authority and any injunction,

judgment, order, ruling, assessment or writ issued by any governmental authority.

"Material Adverse Effect” means any (a) event, occurrence, fact, condition, change or
development that has had or reasonably would be expected to have a material adverse
effect on the business, operations, value, financial, operating results, prospects, or other
condition, assets or liabilities of the Company, either individually or taken as a whole;
(b) material impairment of the ability of the Company to perform their respective
obligations hereunder or under any other ancillary agreements, as applicable; or (c)
change, event or effect that is or would reasonably be expected to have a material and
adverse effect on the legality, validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any

ancillary agreements.

"Transaction” means the transaction contemplated under this Agreement.

Share Purchase and Closing.

2.1 Sale and Purchase of the Purchasing Shares. Subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, at the Closing, the Buyer agrees to subscribe and
purchase from the Company 6,000,000 preferred shares of par value NT$10
(the "Purchasing Shares") each to be issued by the Company at NT$30 per
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preferred share (the "Purchase Price") and the Company intends to issue and
sell the Purchasing Shares to the Buyer. The total amount of the purchase price
for the Purchasing Shares is NT$180,000,000 (the "Total Purchase Price").

2.2 Closing. The purchase and sale of the Purchasing Shares shall take place
remotely via the exchange of documents and signatures within two Business
Days upon the satisfaction or waiver of all the closing conditions set forth
herein, or at such other time and place as the Company and the Buyer mutually

agree upon in writing.

2.3 Delivery.

@ At the Closing, the Buyer shall deliver to the Company the Total
Purchase Price, which shall be paid in the form of wire transfer of
immediately available funds to the bank account designated by the
Company in writing.

(b) At the Closing, the Company shall deliver to the Buyer:

Q) a share certificate representing the Purchasing Shares that is
registered in the Buyer's name; and
(i) a copy of the shareholder roster of the Company, reflecting the

Purchasing Shares being purchased by the Buyer.

The Buyer's Put Option.

3.1 Exercise of Put Option. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herein, under either of the following circumstances, the Buyer has the right, but
not the obligation, to require the Company to redeem the whole or part of the
Purchasing Shares pursuant to the procedure specified in this Section 3 (the
"Put Option"):

@ the Company is in breach of any of its representations and warranties

made under Section 6.6 or Section 6.7 herein; or

(b)  the Company is in breach of any of its covenants or undertakings made

under Section 8.2 herein.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

The Parties hereby expressly acknowledge that the Buyer’s exercise of its Put
Option to sell back the Purchasing Shares shall not affect or compromise the

Buyer’s rights under any other provisions herein or its rights to claim damages.

Purchase Price of the Put Shares. The Company shall, within ten (10)
business days or such other days as promptly as legally possible following its
receipt of the Buyer’s written notice requiring the Company to redeem the
Purchasing Shares (the "Put Notice"), purchase such number of the Purchasing
Shares identified in the Put Notice (the "Put Shares") at the same Original
Purchase Price per Put Share (collectively, the "Redemption Price") (the "Put

Option Transaction").

Put Option Transaction Closing. At the closing of the Put Option
Transaction, the Company shall pay the Redemption Price, by wire transfer of
the funds in NT$ to the bank account as designated by the Buyer, and the Buyer

shall deliver the share certificates representing the applicable Put Shares:

Put Option Transaction Closing Condition. The closing of the Put Option
Transaction shall be conditioned upon the Buyer's obtaining the approval of the
Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic Affairs for the Buyer's
transfer and delivery of the applicable Put Shares to the Company. The
Company shall make best efforts to assist the Buyer with such application

process as reasonably requested by the Buyer.

Conditions to the Buyer's Obligations at the Closing.

4.1

The obligation of the Buyer to purchase the Purchasing Shares at the Closing, unless
otherwise waived by the Buyer, is subject to the fulfilment, to the satisfaction of the
Buyer on or prior to the Closing Date, of the following conditions, except for those with

a specified date, on or prior to such specified date:

Representations and Warranties. With respect to the Closing, the

representations and warranties made by the Company in Section 6 shall be true and

correct when made, and shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date with the
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4.2

4.3

4.4

same force and effect as if they had been made on and as of the Closing Date or
any such date specified in the representations and warranties, subject to changes

contemplated by this Agreement.

FIA. Buyer shall have obtained the FIA approval and all other government
approvals, if any, as may be required in connection with the Transaction.

Due Diligence. The Buyer shall have completed a due diligence review on the
business, legal (including any compliance matters related to anti-corruption and
anti-bribery), financial and tax aspects of the Company and the results are

satisfactory to the Buyer as of the Closing Date.

No Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of this Agreement and until the
Closing Date, there shall have been no event, change, development, condition or

circumstance constituting or giving rise to a Material Adverse Effect.

Conditions to the Company's Obligations at the Closing.

The obligation of the Company to issue and sell the Purchasing Shares at the Closing,

unless otherwise waived by the Company, is subject to the fulfilment, to the satisfaction

of the Company on or prior to the Closing Date, of the following conditions, except for

those with a specified date, on or prior to such specified date:

5.1 Representations and Warranties. With respect to the Closing, the

representations and warranties made by the Buyer in Section 7 shall be true and
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

Representations and Warranties of the Company.
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The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Buyer that the following statements

are true, correct, complete and not misleading as of the date of this Agreement and will

continue to be true, correct, complete and not misleading as of the Closing Date.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Organization and Qualification. The Company is a corporation duly organized,
validly existing under the laws of Taiwan and has all requisite corporate power and
authority to carry on its business as presently conducted and as presently proposed
to be conducted. The Company is duly qualified to transact business and is in good

standing in applicable jurisdictions.

Legal Capacity. The Company is duly organized, validly existing and, if
applicable, in good standing under the laws of Taiwan, and has the legal right and
full power to conduct its business as such business is currently being conducted,
and has full legal capacity and all requisite power and authority to execute and
deliver this Agreement, and to carry out the provisions of this Agreement and is
not under any prohibition or restriction, contractual, statutory or otherwise against

doing so.

Compliance with Laws. (i) There are presently no existing circumstances that
are likely to result in any violation of or liability under any applicable Laws or
other requirements relating to the assets, liabilities, results of operation, condition,
financial or otherwise, or prospects of the Company; and (ii) the Company has not
received any written or oral notification of any asserted present or past failure by
the Company to comply with such laws, rules or regulations, or contracts or

agreements.

Litigation. There is no pending action, suit, proceeding, arbitration, mediation,
complaint, claim, charge or investigation before any court, arbitrator, mediator or
governmental body or, to the Company's knowledge, currently threatened in writing
(a) against the Company or (b) against any consultant, officer, director or
employees of the Company arising out of his or her consulting, employment or
board relationship with the Company, that could cause a Material Adverse Effect to
the Company, or could otherwise materially impact the validity of this Agreement

and the Transaction.
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6.5

6.6

6.7

Financial Statements.

(@ The Company has delivered to the Buyer its latest audited financial statements
(collectively, the "Financial Statements"). Such Financial Statements: (i) are
in accordance with the books and records of the Company; and (ii) are true,
correct and complete and present fairly the financial condition of the Company
at the date or dates therein indicated and the results of operations for the period

or periods therein specified.

(b) Except as set forth in the Financial Statements, the Company has no material
liabilities or obligations, contingent or otherwise, other than (i) liabilities
incurred in the ordinary course of business, and (ii) obligations under contracts

and commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business.

Environmental Matters. The Company is, in all material respects, in
compliance with all applicable Laws relating to the health, safety and environment
(HSE) regulation, protection of the environment or protection of natural resources,
including without limitation, the Air Pollution Control Act, the Water Pollution
Control Act, Waste Disposal Act, Toxic and Chemical Substances Control Act
("Environmental Laws"), which compliance includes obtaining, maintaining and
complying with all permits and approvals and monitoring process required under
applicable Environmental Laws to operate its business. The Company has not
received notice of any pending action or, to the knowledge of the Company,
threatened action alleging noncompliance with or potential liability under
Environmental Laws. Any and all the manufacturing plants owned or leased by the
Company comply with all applicable Laws in respect of safety and quality.

Corporate Social Responsibility. During the production and manufacturing
process, the Company has honored its corporate social responsibility, implemented
the environmental, social and governance standards, adopted the eco-friendly
production process and used eco-friendly materials, and complied with all the

applicable major environmental laws and regulations.
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6.8 No Other Representations or Warranties. Except as otherwise expressly set
forth in this Section 6 of this Agreement, the Company expressly disclaims any
representations or warranties of any kind or nature, statutory, express or implied,
including any representation or warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of any
information regarding the Company made available to the Buyer or its
representatives, including its condition (financial or otherwise) or prospects,
business, or operation, and any information, documents or material made available
to the Buyer in the data room, management presentations or in any other form in
expectation as the transaction contemplated hereby or as to the condition, value or

quality of the business of the Company.

Representations and Warranties of the Buyer.

The Buyer hereby represents and warrants to the Company that the following statements
are true, correct, complete and not misleading as of the date of this Agreement and will

continue to be true, correct, complete and not misleading as of the Closing Date.

7.1  Organization and Qualification. The Buyer is a company incorporated and
validly existing under the laws of the Cayman Islands, and has all requisite
corporate power and authority to carry on its business as now conducted and to
invest in the Company by purchasing the Purchasing Shares contemplated

hereunder.

7.2 Authorization. This Agreement will constitute a valid and legally binding
obligation of the Buyer, subject to, as to enforcement of remedies, applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization and similar laws affecting creditors'

rights generally.

Covenants, Undertakings and other Agreements.
8.1 General. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, each Party shall use best
endeavours to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and do all things necessary,
proper or advisable in order to consummate and make effective the transaction

contemplated by this Agreement.
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8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Corporate Social Responsibility. During the production, manufacturing and
sales process, the Company shall comply with all applicable laws, and shall strike a
proper balance between or among the corporate governance, environmental
protection, human rights, community engagement, employees' welfare,
shareholders' rights, relationship with the upstream and downstream manufacturers,
and relationship with the customers. The Company undertakes to, by taking the
interest of all stakeholders into account, year by year promote the efficacy of the

corporate governance, sustainable development and environment protection.

Survival of Representations and Warranties. The representations and

warranties contained in Section 6 hereof shall survive the Closing.

Miscellaneous.

Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed under the
laws of Taiwan without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law

provision or rule thereof.

Dispute Resolution. Any dispute, controversy, difference or claim arising out of,
relating to or in connection with this Agreement, or the breach, termination or
invalidity thereof, shall be finally settled by the Taiwan Taipei District Court as the
court of the first instance.

Amendment. Any term of this Agreement may be amended only with the written

consent of the Parties.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,

each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall

constitute one and the same instrument.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first

written above.

BUYER:

COMPANY:

Angelearthbaby Investment, Inc. (X ¥ & F 2

)

By:

Name: Angel Amelia Hudson

Title: Chairman

Green Knight Co., Ltd. (%54 5%

By:

N\
U

Name: Purata Green Giant

Title: Chairman
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Model Benefit Corp. Legislation § 101 (B Lab 2014).

{0 G HAIN ~ EIN - FERRGIN ~ Ho - o

Del. Code Ann. tit, 8, §§ 361-368 (2015). i FLINZ 25 28 A LAY HE R
— A% {7 P22 5] (General Corporation Law ) 2 F o

:; Model Benefit Corp. Legislation §§ 103-104 (B Lab 20 14).

§ 201,
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Benefit Corporation, How do I Create General Public Benefit?, available at
http://benefitcorp.net/businesses/how-do-i-create-general-public-benefit,  last
visited 11.20.2016 (“material positive impact on society and the environment,
taken as a whole, as assessed against a third-party standard, from the business
and operations of a benefit corporation.”).

Id.

Model Benefit Corp. Legislation § 102 (B Lab 2014).
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M2 2 A& 2 i - HEEH a8 - Bt R £IR|EE - &
fat N E) 2 F AR R S At E oA - AR AR B A
S FERIRSHY B AR BoA BN 25 B2 g g .

B § 301(e) » 22 E] FHAE AR 00 - IR b IREwE 4 &l F
TN ZFE WA EHRBE ZEAER - AREARAEZRE
e FEIFHI (business judgment rule) » HEHF I 45 452356
AMAL » Rl BIUAZREAY - SREF B ESFIEM G AZF 2 » i
HHPRaEEATSHESE @A - ENEEHERT (informed )
SN o WESHEAEGEZARTIRARAE ZiEF RN E » B
G2 R S MR (e -

BEA + § 301(d)EE§ 305(a)(bYBE » Atk A EIA FEAE) H
RARAEZHEARFEEN ZZEA » WREHK BT Z 0 &
DB ZZ8E A » FELALE AT SRR BATRE 2 A5 RA%EE
FCAZFI S T 8 0 ) o ECHE G SR AR T R - 552 B Al
S H AT AT 2 A2 H A » HR4ES 305(c) » 15 140 ) s B3 ek s
AFRAE TANZRENTTEREA ,  (benefit enforcement proceeding ) # » [
HatAEE AT ARG IR RETE SR AR ABIEZHRE
FREATHMEE FEARATZHGAGE#TR R S %
BUEREH > BOR A A2 20 B RAR PR EZ A - FTal A BT
inidE  BARATFRERKAELAFEEMITZAGRER » 502
pEREEREE R ERBSUEARET 2T REEE (BHEAT

§ 301,
§ 301(e).
§ 301 & § 305.
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BT R BN B A% B TS RE FIERE A Fl 4 - RAEFR
RIBHEFERERT) - HiE—ARNTIRAT R AN F 8
AT RS E 2 EERE" - Mt — AT IR T 5 R
W2 7R o B AT ARBRIERE » 185 RFECRS B IR o DARE S R
[SE o

P 0 2 2 B ERE S 301 T9 03828 B 2ty » HFTHE T 1 Dodge
v. Ford ¥ eBay Domestic Holdings, Inc. v. Newmark LI » X G #E
VB R KAEA B LIRS Z AT o 3825 WA B A 22 FIHE R
& AKX (constituency statutes ) » Bff FLETLY Bl EH G LLH 8 EHE
LA FoAh R R A - {E 330 IEE SR A B B HH L35 -
PATMS 301 (a) rPBARESER A 252 56 S0 H 24 B A 55 LA
FLAth I B A Z Fl 2% »

(Z) AASARIUH 5 5 = 7 2 AR

§ 302 HGE - A BT AZRAE] (publicly traded corporation ) %
AR E A w#E (benefit director) » FEAFHET Z 0% 24 &) HI ]
BEMAE - AR RELN AR AR - it BOR - RIS
102 ZHE » ZARE AT EAGA FRH A E A HEAF M
% BIERESEYERREZ S RAFREF AT » KIRASEE
WEHEABBHGE AREBE T BRHEERE Z A 8E
& —AnBELAREIELRA T —RERD W LFRK
Mg - WUBFOABHARABZEEATZITHRESHED
Bl ZAwE R - A EB S REH MRS 301 5§

¥ § 305(b).

=L
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ERABHRE AR HZWE 0 M — AR B S SR 0 MR SRR A
Rtk A ik o WA A B R -

PR R RN ARG 0 2R  FRTURIL LR R A &
AMB RN LN EMBEHIERZRE  MAF BB KA B MAT 2
S)ERNAH— ARG H AT HA T AR NN — kX BN E
AITRGHZ B F P ARAANR c AEGFAEGE L 2% -t ok
TANELY—RBRRFAARNTZ HERR RN A EZRHUAE - D
HEIEBIM B RERHAE  NERWREZRSS) > aROWEAE W
AOBATARRBRITRGREZ Rk - SR AP hEdmiioks "k a
WG R AT RITA B R R AR Bk S — SR R AR AR AR KRR
H ERARSZAEE  HENE 0 RERPEEGMEAEZMBARFAR
I ZRE c BAANSERNETRE B P EMRSITA THRL2NEAANE
sho MARKRCEATRMARm 2 =288 [ ERAFRE 188 > 2012 & 12
A R 61 R) Ak krMdbidzmEisz » REBRLEHZHAEN
o MAFHARE 2P ELRERRE s FRES - 50 2 HERMEA
WA Zn 26 P (FRIEERTA B& PR E) » dfid AU R E 0 ik
R oMARBREZBIARRRDF RN ARG RAEBZHHFRE - it
Sho FRAEG Q) FRFREFEARRTAL QLR — twtk B &8k
Fik o RITHEDHE 25 2 B8 » 4o 58 O30 R MK - B8R T SO0 B4
WEREKAEEIRGEFRRATIEZELOR HHAAR  RETRRALKY K
Rt # 2 A% RIRIF MM AR R o A ML LBABHFAT RN KR — otk
MER o AR AR b ER2AFAEMNERTF S TR HEE R ARE R
B R R PR X RFIAGE o b2 0 ME S R R AT K FRESE
Z F)Hf o

K- ¥R & FARRFR

— AN FRZITIRNESITZIRR

2 3) ARG S MR RTS8 FARAR N 2 B Gk 0 N S e
RELMBLA (RR2E) ~ARAS) - HELF)) R A (RHGAMRLSE) —
BREEHITEZ (28900 AN~ ——F ~ —=Zf ) BRH 3 Rtk » R
A P2 A AR R R ARy S SRR B (28—t t) Az
NAMARBEMBREAEE I ARRERE2 (28 FWL——=Z——F ) Th
2FHERBMNEGELESMEIA S SR RGO MM EM BT - BRAR L
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S A AL DT RN BRI BN S EERA A E > MATH
AR FRZEERAPHAHRERATLAGAHE 2 PRAALAEZAEIRR? )
BEAER - RERZEAED T R THEATH R B0 % Mfadt B2
PR HAAEEEREFR HFRNTAETEZRARARMRGET LB
fest [AERPHEMRE 188902012 % 12 A% 62 ] 365 - nEdie ¥
IR GEHRAAH A UF AR RARE - K —ARZABRE L)AL T - &
ERBERIMHEME + ABRER DT RAG ~ R EHRS » FERE K2 RKE
kst E o RMIRAI LR ARKEFREE EER  *Hen KA L o A BHR I P8
W FORT A SR AR RAFERLY K MELQ)AREERLNER A B
R & AR o

—Hx i F o KR LR R R 0 e SRR R TR R E R R
R AERANER—ZHP ML MAFEERHAL KA XEE &
T AR 2 3) AR R 5B M 2 AT AR BB B AR MR &R R
FREEZ (FEAHREFR) © Z2ANFASAGWEL  REBRELA
25 AN HRHARNKE KB XLAITZERNBRERE H FIH &l REAT
F o RERALRKASAMBRATERAAEAN (B —TAER) REFTES
RAERBLRE ZHALFR Pl ERTHFRERLERE HARL
T FAHERREBALR TEUERRZTEFRAARR S 2" X AHF A4
RHEF T ELMBHALAANTEAFRRERBLEF  Koirfrizh [AR

I s has S 02 FORoR Gl 2 6 e MR WO F M W 28 56 mEFERY 8RR edoty
PR EAMNRN Bl P2 23 FSE AR MK LRG DEREIERAK FMIELR 272§
PMAKE HURPHT 23M 200469 H 650 P EXF » 234 T 2005% 94 | o

2 At S EHPFHABERCHATATRAGZANEN - S 2fnER & AR ERZ R
B v T dy A0 IR FR R B 2 Sk PIRS A B MR Bk E S R RER - W2 3N 304N 1
M2 BT R PH TR T RERRE ) FHB 2 SMELW MR EX
F oo R e

3 OSMELE CRFHELBRAR O RECAEFE (—) — R AGM RIS R THR M &M PMmis
1678 2001 1418 101 | »

4 ISR (o AR R B AER LR | 9MATZ R WEE A LR T AKNLAT - B
AHERLNERFFAHEBEFEFRHONHE  AFLRARKFEEERHOE P LFREGE
ERBOMAE o ERRRMELAEFRYYTEFM AR o Vgl Uwe Hiffer, Aktiengesetz, 10.
Auflage 2012, § 93 Rn. I; Spindler, in: Minchener K¢ ntar zum Aktiengesetz, 3. Aufl., 2008, § 93 Rn. 27;
Schmidt/Lutter, AktG, 2008, § 93 Rn. 3.

SO MR AER  ROAMANZ FEFHETER LM AR L ARMERMRE + § LA E 109 M7 2010
FILH 124200

6 AL AIMEE  FICKIEAATE IR M - ARAH M - RO AE AL 2 o MR 0 2 AkN
(L) BT AR » ZR 20124 2320/ ¢

T A ikmek o HYEERO FHSHOUMEHE  BR AN  EANITIERZH AR 26 RORET - B %
AWRIERBOR K B ARRABE LG AILMY) o SMEE Mt —AEFIERELTZ U RBERAR
SRR T R MR R A — IR NP 99 FR A LFER 1091 AR A 23k %M 0 196 45 2011
HEOR 197-198 F o b AR ER 924 8 A I8 B AW E N 09202172110 &% - B A LT HR
PREBERRE ST AT HREEF  MEAETAF A LT TR AT ERFRR L MRE
B RE N B R oo

8 oMY EFRY AN LNHRFBROOR KA RL A Mt HELBERTH - FMHREL &1
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THRBERFRATRRE R dh) — RS EE—OO0FELFR LR RFF AL A
S F A AR A o kR L AT G

WPITRE 1830 2012 9 12 B » B 63 W] AT F A & il 2008 8 A bk
B e ik PR E o 24 BV LSR5 R 2 8) 0k X MR B AT ARAR - {2 L ARARAR R 4K
WA ARERAE Rkt F I8 AERATFHEY KEFOHRE - A2
B2 FRMITAERTARBTERZK » EFEBET - *AB KSR R
ZuFEEE Pl RXATSRLOANE - REAXDBRRFN - RELKENE
PE ~ 4R K T AT R R R RATHET o AN T EABREN L ER
HRBEFAAMEH ARG EHAMARLNFLEERGMREZA -

S RARHER —ZHEERERRENEIRZ S

BN R AL R E N 25 (Aktiengesellschaft, AG) ¥R HFRA R
Bk 2 R JAkfrik (Aktiengesetz) B B ERUYER AT THRRN Ak
ZME KB ZINE » ARG RRE T EREFLAAIANT  FHLE
FIRNAEZRE (F— &) HERMMBEZREAMANY  BRIFERLCHILAR
HAEEHRIE - (F=0)), ARREGHHR 2AMMARKRR LM S - B MR
MR 2 E) A B HE (A ELRARRE 18R 20128124 » K64 K]

EERER = ZHFERE — QMM AHMRY  LHREHCSHRAX
A2 FORBN AR YR B AT T Ao AR o 2 8 AT R MR e 2
Mo e RALFEAREASET + A A2 TFEPLA L B MR E &AW
FBmT AN FIRE R FMEHRMAHFF T FHRAREEAASE At
A A AR T IRME AL MM « (WA H o 4 UL R &1k
FikBp A A RE A FRTHERH LR S AR —FHAHRE
oo RN A A A ERTHM AR R 2 AR RN RS
A i % % $ik (einfache Stimmenmehrheit) "2 i A k" sbeb R P R BT
MR k'S o sbIhE R AP R TE AR AN T ERTRE
THAKRM T ERTHRGRE ) BRE  PATEENFA A XAHFERLTH
BEEARE o'

BERER AP ER P =M B ARR - R ERMAHEZA

WFEH o A EEERT IR 2011 1L A P I819FH -

9 RERESEEOSH 8 A 14 A& FH 09502112420 3 AFF AT+ 230kl R F FZME « HBEKRG
FETHMILEF - HEHILRE R BH L) FEARE LWL EF  AALANBLEFY
FEMTRA » £ME R0 DT R RRITR 2 Bl AW AEEERE 2020 2011 E 104 69H -

10 Vgl Uwe Hiiffer, Aktiengesetz, 10, Auflage 2012, § 23 Rn. 34,

11 [ Lix, §23Rn, 35,

12 (W) doetiik 0 S24E W SARW 3 &) ~ W 103 4BM 1AM 3 &) ~ B D3RR IR~ B2/ F 17T96W 2A% 2
HR3INF-

13 MRS SR BT ZAMZ S ORI FAGF ER S BRIRA BWAL S -

14 (o doletik B 103 4EW 2ORM 28) ~ F LI34EN IR 42 ~ B 14240 IR 1 o) ¥ -

15 Vgl Vollhard, Minchner Kommentar zam AktG 2. Auflage 2004, § 133 Rn, 52.

16 Vgl Pentz, in: Miinchener K zum Aktiengesetz, Band I, 3. Auflage 2008, § 23 Rn. 155,
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7 TGS LA H 4 JUH 5380 CSTEETHR (1 {gd - AR3EnTk Ll PRRT
A SR RG T AE D BIRY o AR EDEERF RN A 23K o (HANREA R Z 509 - BB PSR
SO 38 R AR S Rz 4 o
Charitable Corp. v. Sutton, 2 Atk. 400, 26 Eng. Rep. 642 (Ch. 1742).

8 Mart. (n.s.) 68 (La. 1829).
DENNIS J. BLOCK, NANCY E. BARTON & STEPHEN A. RADIN, THE BUSINESS JUDGMENT
RULE: FIDUCIARY DUTIES OF CORPORATE DIRECTORS 9, 10 (1998).

5 See RANDY J. HOLLAND, CORPORATE LAW ToPICS, TAIWAN SPEECHES 23 (Taiwan
Corporate Governance Association, 2019) [ A# {f{& {58472k » i Randy J. Holland
% PRaRchd¥ » Randy J. Holland fE-&2Y BliE NGRS chiiAREAEE » —O—UE
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RS TRAARRE ) ZIRBL » = ~ BURIERS TR ) FrER > 1Y ~ X285

6  Aronson v. Lewis, 473 A.2d 805 (Del. 1984).

7  Cinerama, Inc. v. Technicolor, Inc., 634 A.2d at 1162.

8 U 8L FUNIR €64 BEh AL ¥ Randy J. Holland 3 : HE5¢ 25 23 5] BB 4692
AC 5 ( fiduciary duties ) + %S HERIRES T =FBL (a “triad™) )+ SO AT HIHERZ
ZHCHEHE 2 WEEE RS - S W SR =82 —#EHR - Randy J.
Holland, supra note 4, at 26-27; see also Cede & Co. v. Technicolor, Inc., 634 A.2d 345,
361 (Del. 1993). FEHIAE » UL - ACEEHW S HEE TN ( elements of the
Rule) ¥ FUifi + SRR 2809 = B RE HEE (IHRILES =R B Al A
B FRF ek ) o JRIT - PR HEH 2 3% AR BS (duty of good faith ) » & [#{EH) FUIN fik 5
R EMN  REZE A EUEEEEHE - ARHIEM (indirectly ) FE4EBT o
FEA BT R 2 5 L 2 U it B ( directly ) 54 (T o See e.g., Stone v. Ritter,
Del., 911 A.2d 362 (2006). S5t » (A A (] - ZICHESS (fiduciary duty; Z{E A )
AN L RS UL W2 TR » AT 300 285 A th 47 0] il 5 IRk Sl
HiE ERBREHBH = KT ARESGSS RN BRI  WERHRG A
SERTRENE o [RIPSOBR » 2875 T » AR AR A2 EREHBUEERS - A B LS
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HHERE » HAGHERR EP e EERBAITENFSENAT
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2 ~ W ERATOR & & W 2 W3 — PEF A R
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SR AR A AP SRR AR (BAEH (LUTFRE) : (=20
OHFE—H=+—H) ) e AIEFER AR ZERE A » JLERPE
OOOF N MBIEN & AR 2 M PREZEARF » FRETIRE 217 - &
BRI &5 8 R Z AR H » SORITR T SN o #08  ASULARN RS 28 e 2838

9 GiEZ o BTl T RREAIETEN L RHEE TREBARLZA (RERS - BEA)  7EE
ORI C HRMA ZAES > ME ISR HEIE (%) KA AT Z R
FOR G » FLRAT R A RIZFI R 1 BRIEDUES RER BRI L RHE 5 2 FIEHE -
BHIRFZ Y 2 GG WMERy - EPEARG R T A G RBE ZE » TR FHERF
4o Dennis J. Block, Nancy E. Barton & Stephen A. Radin, supra note 4, at 39-106. %3[# A
SCRRIE 2 (PRI B » B8 8 B B W) i e A B 2B 95 — DGR {8, FUM 22 W)L R%
FREM  BUGESTR - B—O0W » —OOtFE+—H » i 135214 : Fdirg
AT EEPEBATRE S HE - Al —UILEE - FH 151

10 See Cede, 634 A.2d at 361 (citing Nixon v. Blackwell, 626 A.2d 1366, 1377 (Del. 1993));
See also Randy J. Holland, supra note 5, at 27-28.

11 Randy J. Holland, supra note 5, at 27-28.
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96 £ akdE A o BRI IR A PIRTL R ASHL - & MR ERILE 1860 2011 410 B 0 H 89«

97 Block, Barton & Radin, supra note 7, at 80,

98 Id. at81,

99 Id, at82,

100 £F AN 2 A RAZERAHNEERH—ERBEEMA+AERAL LFER-ZOCRRFIAR A Bk
AWMLY 1970 2011 £ 10H » R ISR«
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K (RGERAY 4 LFRAZERAASH ) o A EFRRAEESRE XN RAMEZRARNHS - EF
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1. BRRERE

AR ik O (88508 P s B SR R DR GRS B 6 150 0 ARS8 i
By BERERTHRE PRIAITE R BRFTER TERYANE RS » HE45 2 M AR AT A WU
R HIE 2 A ER » RSB RS E M ik R Or i - ELAERZRY - BERETE R
% PR S TS o HIAN7E Silver v. Allard” ~ Aronson v.
Lewis* » ED.I.C. v. Baldini''%: %€ » 35275768 378 ZFS - 5024 SR
AVEREINGIC - RITAEAEER 4 i AU i F o

2. AR ERLAH T R (7 R MR ]

RO 7 i U T e (B T R 2 22 AT S A S (8 A\ P
{728 » FIANFA Seminarie v. Landa —% » EFiF5 » BRIFEFME A GFHES
B 2R B EE 2 A AR AR 0 A B ER IR R Z

* MBCA Ann., Cmt. to § 8.31.

¥ SR - FRE 12 H 191 RHSIAIE34) -

7 See BAINBRIDGE, supra note 27, at 124-127.

¥ See BAINBRIDGE, supra note 27, at 123,

¥ 16 F.Supp.2d 966, 970 (N.D.1II. 1998).

473 A.2d 805, 813 (Del. Supr. 1984).

41983 F.Supp.2d 772, 780 (S.D.W. Va. 2013).

The business judgment rule “presupposes that the directors have no conflict of interest.” Lewis
v. S.L. & E., Inc., 829 F.2d 764, 769 (2d Air. 1980).
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# 662A.2d1350, 1354 (Del.Ch. 1995).

# 352 F. Supp. 3d 471, 488489 (D. Md. 2018).

49 N.Y.S.2d 2 (Sup.Ct. 1944).

See BAINBRIDGE, supra note 27, at 123,

A director has an indirect interest in a transaction if: (1) Another entity in which he has a
material financial interest or in which he is a general partner is a party to the transaction; or (2)
Another entity of which he is a director, officer, or trustee is a party to the transaction and the
transaction is or should be considered by the board of directors of the corporation. In re Brokers,
Inc., 363 B.R. 458, 472 (Bankr. M.D.N.C. 2007).
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